
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
“To Enrich Lives Through Effective and Caring Service” 

 
900 SOUTH FREMONT AVENUE 

ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA  91803-1331 
Telephone: (626) 458-5100 
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August 18, 2005 
 

DONALD L. WOLFE, Director 

ADDRESS ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO: 
P.O. BOX 1460 

ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 91802 -1460 

IN REPLY PLEASE 

REFER TO FILE:  AS-0 

 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Los Angeles 
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 
Dear Supervisors: 
 
JANITORIAL SERVICES AT ALCAZAR, HOLLYDALE, 
IMPERIAL, AND WESTCHESTER YARDS 
SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS 1, 2, AND 4 
3 VOTES 
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT YOUR BOARD:  
 

1. Find that this work is exempt from the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 
2. Approve an Agreement for Janitorial Services with Diamond Contract 

Services, Inc., for janitorial services at Alcazar, Hollydale, Imperial, and 
Westchester Yards in the sum of $73,822.73.  This Agreement will be for a 
term of one year commencing on September 20, 2005. 

   
3. Find that this Proposition A contract can be performed more economically 

by the selected contractor than by County employees.   
 

4. Approve and instruct the Chair to sign an Agreement in substantially 
similar form to Enclosure A, the Sample Agreement, upon approval by 
County Counsel and presentation by the Director.  

 
5. Delegate authority to the Director to terminate the Agreement if, in the 

opinion of the Director, it is in the best interest of the County to do so. 
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PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The enclosed Agreement is for janitorial services to be provided to various Public Works 
facilities throughout the County of Los Angeles.  The Agreement will help Public Works 
expeditiously meet the need for janitorial services as current contracts expire.  
Public Works has contracted for janitorial services for many years.  The purpose of this 
action is to continue contracting for these services at existing locations.  
 
Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals 
 
The award of the Agreement is consistent with the County Strategic Plan Goals of 
Service Excellence and Organizational Effectiveness as the qualified contractors have 
the specialized expertise to provide these services accurately, efficiently, timely, and in 
a responsive manner.  Utilization of this Agreement will result in increasing the 
efficiency and effectiveness of contracting for janitorial services. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING 
 
Services will be financed primarily from the Road, Flood, and Internal Service Funds.  In 
addition, should the need for janitorial services provided under this Agreement arise at 
locations funded by other Public Works funds, such services will be financed from the 
appropriate fund.  The recommended Agreement will be financed as follows:  Alcazar 
Yard, $45,079 from the 2005-06 Internal Service Fund; Hollydale Yard, $7,214.73 from 
the 2005-06 Road Fund and $2,404.90 from the 2005-06 Internal Service Fund; 
Imperial Yard, $9,499.01 from the 2005-06 Flood Fund; and Westchester Yard, 
$8,181.33 from the 2005-06 Road Fund and $1,443.76 from the 2005-06 Internal 
Service Fund.  There will be no impact on net County cost. 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The janitorial work contemplated under the Agreement is being contracted in 
accordance with procedures authorized under County Charter Section 44.7, Part 3, and 
Chapter 2.121 (Contracting with Private Business) of the Los Angeles County Code, as 
set forth in Enclosure D.  The mandatory requirements for contracting set forth in 
County Code Section 2.121.380 have been met. 
 
Public Works has determined that the contractor will comply with the requirements of 
the Living Wage Program (Los Angeles County Code Chapter 2.201) and has agreed to 
pay their full-time employees providing these services a living wage, subject to any valid 
exemption from the program.   
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Public Works has accessed available resources to review and assess the proposed 
contractor's past performance, history of Labor Law violations, and prior performance on 
County contracts. 
 
CONTRACTING PROCESS 
 
On April 7, 2005, Public Works issued a Request for Statements of Qualifications 
(RFSQ) soliciting 317 independent contractors and community business enterprises to 
accomplish this work.  A Notice of RFSQ was also placed on the County's bid website 
(Enclosure B) and an advertisement was placed in the Los Angeles Times. 
 
On April 21, 2005, 21 Statements of Qualifications were received.  The statements were 
first reviewed to ensure they met the mandatory requirements outlined in the RFSQ.   
Eighteen of the 21 statements met these mandatory requirements.  These 18 statements 
were then evaluated by an evaluation committee consisting of Public Works staff.   
 
The committee's evaluation was based on criteria described in the RFSQ, including 
experience, financial resources, and references.  Based on this evaluation, 
Public Works selected five responsive and responsible vendors.   
 
The five qualified vendors were asked to bid on the janitorial services described herein.  
Diamond Contract Services, Inc., was the low bidder for each location.  The bid 
amounts from Diamond Contract Services, Inc., are as follows: $45,079 for Alcazar 
Yard; $9,619.63 for Hollydale Yard; $9,499.01 for Imperial Yard; and $9,625.09 for 
Westchester Yard. 
 
Enclosure C reflects each qualified vendor's minority participation.  The contractors 
were selected upon final analysis and consideration without regard to race, creed, 
gender, or color. 
 
The Agreement contains Board-approved contract terms and conditions regarding 
contractor responsibility and debarment, jury service requirements, no payment for 
services received after contract expiration or termination, and the Safely Surrendered 
Baby Law.  
 
Utilizing the Auditor-Controller's guidelines for determining the cost-effectiveness of 
Proposition A contracts, Public Works has determined that janitorial services at the 
specified yards can be more economically performed by independent contractors than by 
County employees.  
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Proof of the required Comprehensive General and Automobile Liability insurance 
policies, naming the County as additional insured, and evidence of Workers' 
Compensation insurance will be obtained from the contractor before any work is 
assigned. 
 
As requested by your Board, the contractor has submitted safety records which reflect 
that activities conducted by the contractor in the past have been according to 
reasonable standards of safety.    
 
In accordance with the Chief Administrative Officer's June 15, 2001, instructions, this is 
Public Works' assurance that the contractor will not be requested to perform services 
which exceed each contract's approved amount, scope of work, and/or terms. 
 
IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS) 
 
The award of this Agreement will not result in the displacement of any County 
employees, as these services are presently contracted with the private sector. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
One adopted copy of this letter is requested.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
DONALD L. WOLFE 
Director of Public Works 
 
SS 
P:\aspub\CONTRACT\Scott\JANITORIAL MASTER RFSQ\BD LTR- rev4.doc 

 
Enc. 4 
 
cc: Chief Administrative Office 
 County Counsel 
 
 
 
 












































































































































































































































































































